
HAWICK COMMON GOOD FUND SUB-
COMMITTEE

TUESDAY, 21 FEBRUARY 2017

A MEETING of the HAWICK COMMON GOOD FUND SUB-COMMITTEE will be held in the 

LESSER HALL, TOWN HALL, HAWICK on TUESDAY, 21 FEBRUARY 2017 at 4.00 PM

J. J. WILKINSON,
Clerk to the Council,

14 February 2017

BUSINESS

1. Apologies for Absence 

2. Order of Business 

3. Declaration of Interest 

4. Minute (Pages 1 - 6) 2 mins

Consider Minute of meeting held on 15 November 2016 (copy attached),
5. Financial Assistance 

Consider applications for financial assistance from:-
(a)  Heads Together (Pages 7 - 

18)
5 mins

Copy attached.  
(b)  Hawick Congregational Community Church - 

Reaching Out Project 
(Pages 19 - 
34)

5 mins

Copy attached. 
(c)  Nature Unlimited (Pages 35 - 

72)
5 mins

Copy attached. 
(d)  Hawick Community Pump Track (Pages 73 - 

92)
5 mins

Copy attached. 
(e)  Hawick Scout Pipe Band (Pages 93 - 

98)
5 mins

Copy attached. 
6. Monitoring Report for nine months to 31 December 2016 (Pages 99 - 

110)
10 mins

Public Document Pack



Consider report by Chief Financial Officer. (Copy attached).
7. Governance and Financial Arrangements 10 mins

Ms Nuala McKinlay, Chief Legal Officer and Mr David Robertson, Chief 
Financial Officer to advise.

8. Hawick Woodlot 5 mins

Verbal update from Estates Surveyor. 
9. Property Update 5 mins

Verbal update from Property Officer and Estates Surveyor
10. Any Other Items Previously Circulated 

11. Private Business 1 mins

Before proceeding with the private business, the following motion should be 
approved:-

“That under section 50A(4) of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973, 
the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business 
on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information 
ad defined in paragraph 9  and paragraph 6 of Part 1 of Schedule 7A to the 
aforementioned Act”.

12. Private Minute (Pages 111 - 114)

Consider private minute of the meeting of 15 November 2016. (Copy 
attached). 

13. Action Sheets (Pages 115 - 148) 5 mins

To note actions from minutes and private minutes of the Hawick Common 
Good Fund Sub-Committee and refer any outstanding items to the 
2017/2018 Sub-Committee. (Copy attached). 

14. Hawick Horse Racing Association (Pages 149 - 150) 5 mins

To consider letter from Hawick Horse Racing Association.  (Copy attached). 
15. Hawick Market 20 mins

Private briefing by Mr Jim Smith, Regional Operations Manager,Craig Taylor 
and John Cooke, Marketing Manager, Geraud Markets (UK) Ltd

16. Hornshole 5 mins

Private update from Managing Solicitor. 
17. Property Update 10 mins

Private discussion led by Estates Surveyor 



NOTES
1. Timings given above are only indicative and not intended to inhibit Members’ 

discussions.

2. Members are reminded that, if they have a pecuniary or non-pecuniary interest in any 
item of business coming before the meeting, that interest should be declared prior to 
commencement of discussion on that item. Such declaration will be recorded in the 
Minute of the meeting.

Membership of Committee:- Councillors G. Turnbull (Chairman), A. Cranston, S. Marshall, 
W. McAteer, D. Paterson, R. Smith, Mr J Little and Mrs A Knight

Please direct any enquiries to Judith Turnbull  Tel No. 01835 826556
Email: judith.turnbull@scotborders.gov.uk



This page is intentionally left blank



SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL
HAWICK COMMON GOOD FUND SUB-COMMITTEE

MINUTES of Meeting of the HAWICK 
COMMON GOOD FUND SUB-COMMITTEE 
held in Lesser Hall, Town Hall, Hawick on 
Tuesday, 15 November 2016 at 4.00 pm

Present:- Councillors G Turnbull (Chairman), A Cranston, W McAteer, S Marshall, D 
Paterson, R Smith, Mr J Little.  

Apologies: Councillor D Paterson, Estates Surveyor.
In Attendance:-

Members of the 
Public 

Managing Solicitor (R Kirk), Estates Manager (N Hastie), Senior Finance 
Officer (J Yallop), Democratic Services Officer (J Turnbull).

3

1. ORDER OF BUSINESS 
The Chairman varied the order of business as shown on the agenda and the Minute 
reflects the order in which the items were considered at the meeting.

2. MINUTE 
There had been circulated copies of the Minute of the Meeting held on 16 August 2016.

DECISION
APPROVED the Minute for signature by the Chairman.   

3. FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 
The Sub-Committee considered applications for financial assistance from the following:-

3.1 Hawick Honorary Provosts Council 
There had been circulated copies of an application for financial assistance from Hawick 
Honorary Provosts Council requesting £2,000 towards their running costs. 

DECISION 
AGREED to award a grant of £2,000 towards the running costs of Hawick Honorary 
Provosts Council.

3.2 Hawick Reivers’ Association 
There had been circulated copies of an application for financial assistance from Hawick 
Reivers’ Association requesting £2,500 towards the overall running costs of the Festival. 
Ms Catherine Elliott, Hawick Reivers’ Association Chairman, was in attendance.  Ms Elliott 
acknowledged that the Association applied for funding every year and explained that they 
had secured £12k from other sources for the Festival. However, the difficulty was that 
such funding was given for a specific purpose and it was proving difficult to secure funding 
for the day to day running costs of the Festival.  The Committee discussed the application 
and it was agreed to grant £2,500 towards the running costs of the Festival. 

DECISION
AGREED to award a grant of £2,500 toward the overall running costs of the Festival. 

3.3 Hawick Royal Albert FC
There had been circulated copies of an application for financial assistance from Hawick 
Royal Albert Football Club for £500.00.  The grant would be used to off-set the cost of bus 
hire to Elgin to enable the Club to participate in the 3rd round of the Scottish Cup.  Mr 

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



Borthwick was in attendance representing the Football Club (FC).  In answer to a question 
he confirmed that the FC were also receiving assistance from the Scottish Football 
Association towards transport costs.   The Sub-Committee congratulated the Football 
Club on their achievement and wished them success in their match against Elgin.   

DECISION 
AGREED to award a grant of £500 to Hawick Royal Albert Football Club for 
transport costs to enable their participation in the 3rd round of the Scottish Cup.  

3.4 The Heart of Hawick Children’s Book Award
There had been circulated copies of an application for financial assistance from the Heart 
of Hawick Children’s Book Award for the purchase of sets of books to donate to schools.  
The grant would also assist costs associated with the 10th Anniversary Awards Ceremony. 
Ms Scott, was in attendance and explained that although the initiative was based in 
schools, it was run by Heart of Hawick in collaboration with the library. The books chosen 
were not on the school curriculum, but chosen to stimulate the interest of reluctant 
readers and encourage reading for enjoyment.  As well as providing schools with books, 
Heart of Hawick carried out workshops in schools.   Ms Scott advised that they had 
carried out fundraising events and that many local businesses supported the initiative. 
The funding was important to ensure that they could plan for next year’s event.   In 
answer to a question, Ms Smith advised that with regard to the Awards Ceremony, they 
provided authors with funding for one night’s accommodation in the town.  After 
discussion, it was unanimously agreed to award the grant. 

DECISION
AGREED to award a grant of £2,000 towards the cost of sets of books to donate to 
schools and assistance with the 10th Anniversary Award Ceremony. 

3.5 Wilton Bowling Club
There had been circulated copies of an application for financial assistance from Wilton 
Bowling Club for the purchase of 11 sets of junior bowls.  Mr McCartney was in 
attendance and advised that the previous year the Club had held a Super Bowl event 
throughout the Winter.  Children had been encouraged to participate.  However, they had 
to use adult bowls which were not suited for smaller hands. The funding would be used to 
purchase junior bowls which would encourage children to participate in the sport. 

DECISION 
AGREED to award £1,100 for the purchase of 11 sets of junior bowls. 

4. COMMON HAUGH - APPLICATION FOR FAMILY FUN FAIR 
With reference to paragraph 6 of the Minute of 17 November 2015, an application had 
been received by K Stuart, Family Fun Fair, requesting permission to lease part of the 
Common Haugh on two weekends, in March and April 2017 for a Fun Fair.  Members 
discussed the application and Mr Stuart, Fairground Proprietor, who was in attendance, 
responded to questions.  Members agreed the application and the early start time of 6.00 
pm but refused the request for the Sunday opening.  

DECISION
AGREED
To grant a lease of the Common Haugh, to K Stuart, Family Fun Fair, as follows:

(a) Thursday 23 March 2017 6.00 pm to 9.30 pm
Friday 24 March 2017 6.00 pm to 10.00 pm
Saturday 25 March 2017 1.00 pm to 10.00 pm

(b) Thursday 30 March 2017 6.00 pm to 9.30 pm
Friday 31 March 2017 6.00 pm to 10.00 pm
Saturday 1 April 2017 1.00 pm to 10.00 pm. 

Page 2



5. MONITORING REPORT FOR SIX MONTHS TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2016 
5.1 With reference to paragraph 3 of the Minute of 16 August, there had been circulated a 

report by the Chief Financial Officer providing details of the income and expenditure for 
the Hawick Common Good Fund for the six months to 30 September 2016 and full year 
projected out-turn for 2016/17 and projected balance sheet values as at 31 March 2017.   
Appendix 1 to the report provided the actual income and expenditure. This showed a 
surplus of £18,504 for the year.   Appendix 2 provided a balance sheet value to 31 March 
2017. It showed a projected decrease in the reserves of £21,088.  Appendix 3 provided a 
breakdown of the property portfolio showing projected rental for 2016/17 and actual 
property expenditure to 30 September 2016.   Appendix 4 showed the value of the 
Newton Fund to 30 September 2016.  Mr Yallop, Senior Finance Officer, was in 
attendance and advised that the £18,504 surplus was significantly less than anticipated 
due to increased spending at the Common Haugh and Pilmuir Farm.  Correspondingly 
this had caused a decrease in the reserve to £21,088.  Mr Yallop further advised that 
given the financial assistance awarded above, the budget allocated to grants was now 
overspent.  He therefore suggested an increase of £5k to £10k to the grants budget to 
cover the shortfall and also provide some budget capacity for further grant awards for the 
remainder of 2016-17.

5.2 Councillor Smith, seconded by Councillor Turnbull, moved that the Grants & Other 
Donations budget be increased by £2,300 to cover the current budget shortfall. 

5.3 Councillor McAteer, seconded by Councillor Marshall moved as amendment that the 
budget be increased by £5k.

VOTE

On a show of hands Members voted as follows

Motion - 2 votes
Amendment - 3 votes

The amendment was accordingly carried. 

5.4 Mr Yallop further advised that the Newton Fund was performing well, despite the turmoil in 
the markets due to Brexit and the US Election.  The cash reserve held by the Common 
Good was currently £152k; he suggested that an amount of the cash reserve could be 
further invested in the Newton Fund.  The Committee discussed the proposal and it was 
agreed that an update would be provided by Mr Yallop containing a proposed further 
investment amount. 
  
DECISION
(a) AGREED:-

(i) The projected income and expenditure for 2016/17 as shown in 
Appendix 1 to the report;

(ii) To increase the Grants and Other Donations budget by £5,000; 

(iii) To receive an update from the Senior Finance Officer in the form of a 
proposed amount for further investment in the Newton Fund. 

 (b) NOTED:- 
(i) The actual projected balance sheet value as at 31 March 2017 in 

Appendix 2 to the report;

(ii) The summary of the property portfolio in Appendix 3 to the report; 
and

Page 3



(iii) The current position of the investment in the Newton Fund in  
Appendix 4

6. MOVEABLE ASSETS INVENTORY 
With reference to paragraph 5 of the Minute of 25 May 2015, there had been circulated 
copies of a report summarising the potential Common Good ownership of heritage objects 
held in Hawick Museum and Hawick Town Hall.  The report also updated Members as to 
research carried out over 2016 and made a number of recommendations where 
ownership should be reclassified to Hawick Common Good rather than Scottish Borders 
Council (SBC).  Following concern that there were potential omissions in the Hawick 
Common Good Moveable Asset Register, the Council’s (now Live Borders) Museum 
Service had agreed to undertake a review of heritage collections and some civic 
collections held by Scottish Borders Council to see if any items held in Hawick Museum 
and Hawick Town Hall should be reclassified as belonging to Hawick Common Good.  
The report listed the assumptions used and the collections reviewed.  Based on evidence 
available the report concluded that there were 14 items in the fine art collection, one 
museum item and 22 items in the Town Hall which should be classified.   Mr Ian Brown, 
Cultural Services Manager and Ms Shona Sinclair, Area Curator, Live Borders, were in 
attendance.   The Sub-Committee thanked Mr Brown and Ms Sinclair for their work in 
preparing the Inventory.  Following discussion, Councillor McAteer, seconded by 
Councillor Marshall proposed that the Moveable Assets Inventory should be shared with 
key local stakeholder organisations, to seek their agreement that the list reflected, to their 
best belief and understanding, the relevant assets belonging to Hawick Common Good.  
That upon agreement of the stakeholders this information be forwarded to the Sub-
Committee to make a recommendation to Council to add the said removal items to the 
Hawick Common Good Moveable Asset Inventory.    This was unanimously agreed by the 
Sub-Committee.   

DECISION
(a) NOTED the suggested reclassification of those moveable items listed in the 

report and in Appendix 2 to the report, as assets belonging to Hawick 
Common Good.

(b) AGREED:-

(i) To consult with stakeholder organisations to seek their agreement 
that the Moveable Asset Inventory reflected, to their best belief and 
understanding, the relevant assets belonging to Hawick Common 
Good;

(ii) That upon agreement of the stakeholders, this information be 
presented to the Hawick Common Good Sub-Committee to make a 
recommendation to Council, to add the said removal items to the 
Hawick Common Good Moveable Asset Inventory; and

(iii) To commission a valuation report on the items so listed in the report. 

7. DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
The next meeting of Hawick Common Good Fund Sub-Committee was scheduled to take 
place on Tuesday, 21 February 2017.  

8. PRIVATE BUSINESS 
AGREED under Section 50A(4) of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973 to 
exclude the public from the meeting during consideration of the business detailed 
in the Appendix to the Minute on the grounds that it involved the likely disclosure 
of exempt information as defined in paragraph 6 of Part 1 of Schedule 7A of the Act. 

Page 4



SUMMARY OF PRIVATE BUSINESS

9. PRIVATE MINUTE 
Members approved the private section of the Minute of 16 August 2016.

10. PROPERTY UPDATE 
The Sub-Committee considered and approved verbal reports by the Property Officer.

11. VOLUNTEER PARK, HAWICK 
The Sub-Committee considered and approved a report by Service Director Asset & 
Infrastructure

12. URGENT ITEM 
Under Section 50B(4)(b) of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973, the Chairman was 
of the opinion that the item dealt with in the following paragraph should be considered at 
the meeting as a matter of urgency, in view of the need to keep Members informed

13. HORNSHOLE 
The Sub-Committee noted a verbal update from the Managing Solicitor.

14. HAWICK MARKET 
The Sub-Committee discussed Hawick Market and agreed an update on progress at the 
February meeting. 

15. THE UPCOMING 250TH ANNIVERSARY OF THE LAST PERAMBULATION OF THE 
BOUNDARIES OF HAWICK'S FULL COMMON 
The Sub-Committee considered and agreed a verbal report from Property Officer.

The meeting concluded at 5.40 pm.   

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 7

Agenda Item 5a



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19

Agenda Item 5b



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35

Agenda Item 5c



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Registration number: SC515581

Nature Unlimited C.I.C.

(A company limited by guarantee)

Directors' Report and Unaudited Financial Statements

for the Period from 14 September 2015 to 30 September 2016

Page 53



Nature Unlimited C.I.C.

Contents

Company Information 1

Directors' Report 2

Accountants' Report 3

Profit and Loss Account 4

Balance Sheet 5

Notes to the Financial Statements 6

The following pages do not form part of the statutory financial statements:

Detailed Profit and Loss Account 7 to 8

Page 54



Nature Unlimited C.I.C.

Company Information

Directors J E Barr
E Cox
G S Keita

Registered office 1 Dunstane Farm Cottage
Lilliesleaf
Melrose
Roxburghshire
TD6 9JA

Accountants Deans Accountants And Business Advisors Ltd
Chartered Accountants and Business Advisors
27 North Bridge Street
Hawick
Borders
TD9 9BD

Page 1

Page 55



Nature Unlimited C.I.C.

Directors' Report for the Period from 14 September 2015 to 30 September 2016

The directors present their report and the unaudited financial statements for the period from 14 September 2015 to
30 September 2016.

Incorporation

The company was incorporated on 14 September 2015.

Directors of the company

The directors who held office during the period were as follows:

J E Barr (appointed 14 September 2015)

E Cox (appointed 9 December 2015)

W Patterson (appointed 14 September 2015 and retired 10 September 2016)

G S Keita (appointed 14 September 2015)

J Lawson (appointed 9 December 2015 and retired 5 September 2016)

Small company provisions

This report has been prepared in accordance with the small companies regime under the Companies Act 2006.

Approved by the Board on 6 December 2016 and signed on its behalf by:

.........................................
J E Barr
Director

Page 2

Page 56



Chartered Accountants' Report to the Board of Directors on the Preparation of the

Unaudited Statutory Accounts of

Nature Unlimited C.I.C.

for the Period Ended 30 September 2016

In order to assist you to fulfil your duties under the Companies Act 2006, we have prepared for your approval the
accounts of Nature Unlimited C.I.C. for the period ended 30 September 2016 set out on pages 4 to 6 from the
company's accounting records and from information and explanations you have given us.

As a practising member firm of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Scotland (ICAS), we are subject to its ethical
and other professional requirements which are detailed at www.icas.org.uk.

This report is made solely to the Board of Directors of Nature Unlimited C.I.C., as a body, in accordance with the
terms of our engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken solely to prepare for your approval the accounts of
Nature Unlimited C.I.C. and state those matters that we have agreed to state to them, as a body, in this report in
accordance with AAF 2/10 as detailed at www.icaew.com/compilation. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do
not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than Nature Unlimited C.I.C. and its Board of Directors as a body
for our work or for this report.

It is your duty to ensure that Nature Unlimited C.I.C. has kept adequate accounting records and to prepare statutory
accounts that give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit of Nature Unlimited C.I.C..
You consider that Nature Unlimited C.I.C. is exempt from the statutory audit requirement for the period.

We have not been instructed to carry out an audit or a review of the accounts of Nature Unlimited C.I.C.. For this
reason, we have not verified the accuracy or completeness of the accounting records or information and explanations
you have given to us and we do not, therefore, express any opinion on the statutory accounts.

......................................

Deans Accountants And Business Advisors Ltd
Chartered Accountants and Business Advisors
27 North Bridge Street
Hawick
Borders
TD9 9BD

6 December 2016

Page 3

Page 57



Nature Unlimited C.I.C.

Profit and Loss Account for the Period from 14 September 2015 to 30 September

2016

Note

14
September
2015 to 30
September

2016
£

Turnover 57,347

Administrative expenses (36,352)

Operating profit 20,995

Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 20,995

Profit for the financial period 4 20,995

The notes on page 6 form an integral part of these financial statements.
Page 4

Page 58



Nature Unlimited C.I.C.

(Registration number: SC515581)

Balance Sheet at 30 September 2016

Note

30
September

2016
£

Current assets

Cash at bank and in hand 21,245

Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year 2 (250)

Net assets 20,995

Capital and reserves

Profit and loss account 4 20,995

Total funds 20,995

These accounts have been prepared in accordance with the provisions applicable to companies subject to the small
companies regime and in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard for Smaller Entities (effective 2015).

For the year ending 30 September 2016 the company was entitled to exemption under section 477 of the Companies
Act 2006 relating to small companies.

The members have not required the company to obtain an audit in accordance with section 476 of the Companies Act
2006.

The directors acknowledge their responsibilities for complying with the requirements of the Act with respect to
accounting records and the preparation of accounts.

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board on 6 December 2016 and signed on its behalf by:

.........................................
J E Barr
Director

.........................................
G S Keita
Director

The notes on page 6 form an integral part of these financial statements.
Page 5

Page 59



Nature Unlimited C.I.C.

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Period from 14 September 2015 to 30

September 2016

1 Accounting policies

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention and in accordance with the Financial
Reporting Standard for Smaller Entities (effective January 2015).

Turnover

Turnover represents amounts chargeable in respect of the sale of goods and services to customers.

2 Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year

30
September

2016
£

Other creditors 250

3 Company status

The company is a private company limited by guarantee and consequently does not have share capital. Each of the
members is liable to contribute an amount not exceeding £nil towards the assets of the company in the event of
liquidation.

4 Reserves

Profit and
loss account

£
Total

£

Profit for the period 20,995 20,995

At 30 September 2016 20,995 20,995

Page 6

Page 60



Nature Unlimited C.I.C.

Detailed Profit and Loss Account for the Period from 14 September 2015 to 30

September 2016

14 September 2015 to 30
September 2016

£ £

Turnover (analysed below) 57,347

Gross profit (%) 100.00%

Administrative expenses

Employment costs  (analysed below) (33,536)

General administrative expenses  (analysed below) (2,816)

(36,352)

Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 20,995

This page does not form part of the statutory financial statements
Page 7

Page 61



Nature Unlimited C.I.C.

Detailed Profit and Loss Account for the Period from 14 September 2015 to 30

September 2016

30 September
2016

£

Turnover

Sales, UK 9,516

Grants and subsidies 47,831

57,347

Employment costs

Wages and salaries 32,121

Staff training 550

Travelling 865

33,536

General administrative expenses

Activities and equipment 1,380

Printing, postage and stationery 76

Sundry expenses 13

Accountancy fees 250

Advertising 1,097

2,816

This page does not form part of the statutory financial statements
Page 8

Page 62



	  

	  
	  

	  	  	  	  Nurturing	  Wellbeing,	  Building	  Resilience,	  Creating	  Community	  
	  
	  
	  

Business	  Plan	  
	  
	  
	  

 
 
 
 
 

Nature Unlimited is a Community Interest Company Registered in Scotland No. 515581 

Page 63



Introduction	  
	  

Nature	  Unlimited	  runs	  sessions	  in	  woodlands	  across	  the	  Scottish	  Borders,	  ranging	  from	  employability	  
programmes,	  school	  and	  community	  projects,	  to	  events	  such	  as	  team	  building	  &	  birthday	  parties.	  We	  
nurture	  well-‐being,	  build	  resilience	  and	  create	  community	  through	  teamwork	  and	  nature	  connection	  
activities	  using	  a	  Forest	  School	  approach.	  We	  encourage	  people	  to	  connect	  with	  nature,	  respect	  
themselves	  and	  their	  environment	  and	  support	  them	  to	  improve	  their	  confidence,	  self-‐esteem	  and	  
social	  skills.	  	  
	  

While	  we	  specialise	  in	  working	  with	  marginalised	  young	  people	  in	  an	  effort	  to	  address	  issues	  of	  social	  
inequality,	  our	  market	  includes	  people	  of	  all	  ages	  and	  from	  all	  walks	  of	  life.	  As	  more	  &	  more	  research	  
shows	  the	  benefits	  to	  health	  and	  well-‐being	  of	  being	  outdoors	  and	  the	  detrimental	  effects,	  especially	  
on	  children,	  of	  too	  much	  time	  spent	  indoors	  in	  front	  of	  a	  screen,	  we	  are	  uniquely	  positioned	  to	  
provide	  a	  much	  needed	  service.	  
	  
Overview	  of	  business	  (Year	  1)	  
	  

Nature	  Unlimited	  is	  a	  social	  enterprise	  (community	  interest	  company).	  Our	  board	  has	  a	  range	  of	  skills	  
from	  finance	  to	  green	  woodworking	  and	  a	  wealth	  of	  experience	  in	  Forest	  School	  and	  Environmental	  
Education.	  The	  business	  offers	  nature	  connection	  experiences	  to	  people	  of	  all	  ages	  and	  specialises	  in	  
developing	  life	  skills	  to	  socially	  disadvantaged	  groups,	  through	  leadership	  &	  peer	  mentoring	  
programmes	  based	  in	  the	  outdoors.	  	  
	  

We	  run	  Forest	  School	  and	  John	  Muir	  Award	  programmes	  for	  schools	  as	  an	  intervention	  for	  children	  
who	  are	  not	  thriving	  in	  mainstream	  education.	  They	  may	  have	  behavioural,	  social	  and/or	  emotional	  
difficulties	  and/or	  be	  at	  risk	  of	  exclusion	  from	  or	  failure	  at	  school.	  By	  working	  and	  playing	  together	  in	  
small	  nurture	  groups,	  participants	  become	  successful	  learners,	  confident	  individuals	  and	  responsible	  
citizens.	  We	  expect	  to	  see	  growth	  in	  this	  sector	  because	  of	  the	  newly	  launched	  Pupil	  Equity	  Fund.	  
	  

Our	  Wild	  Woodlanders	  weekend	  and	  holiday	  clubs	  run	  throughout	  the	  year.	  They	  are	  an	  antidote	  to	  
screen	  time and	  give	  children	  the	  chance	  to	  get	  active,	  play	  wild,	  build	  dens,	  make	  friends,	  love	  
nature	  and	  much	  more.	  Children	  learn	  about	  nature	  through	  games	  and	  activities	  and	  develop	  social	  
skills	  through	  teamwork.	  The	  ratio	  of	  adults	  to	  children	  (usually	  1:3)	  allows	  for	  a	  nurturing	  
environment	  where	  children	  thrive.	  
	  

We	  also	  offer	  one-‐off	  events	  such	  as	  woodland	  birthday	  parties,	  stag	  &	  hen	  parties,	  foraging	  
workshops,	  Christmas	  wreath	  making	  etc.	  Adult	  team	  building	  days	  are	  a	  chance	  for	  work-‐place	  
colleagues	  to	  get	  outdoors	  and	  connect	  with	  nature,	  break	  down	  barriers	  and	  do	  something	  to	  help	  
the	  environment,	  whilst	  fulfilling	  their	  corporate	  social	  responsibility.	  
	  

We	  offer	  training	  in	  leading	  outdoor	  sessions	  to	  teachers,	  youth	  workers,	  scout	  &	  guide	  leaders	  &	  
other	  professionals.	  We	  also	  offer	  behaviour	  management	  training	  for	  outdoor	  settings.	  This	  
supports	  schools	  and	  youth	  organisations	  to	  meet	  the	  Curriculum	  for	  Excellence	  Outdoor	  Learning	  
requirements	  as	  well	  as	  to	  address	  the	  lack	  of	  time	  spent	  outdoors	  and	  the	  detrimental	  effect	  this	  is	  
having	  on	  society	  as	  a	  whole	  but	  especially	  on	  children.	  
	  

Our	  employability/volunteer	  development	  programme	  teaches	  woodland	  management	  and	  green	  
woodworking	  techniques	  while	  focussing	  on	  developing	  life	  skills,	  such	  as	  communication	  and	  team	  
work,	  and	  on	  improving	  prospects	  for	  participants.	  We	  are	  currently	  creating	  a	  nature	  trail	  in	  Langlee	  
Woodland	  with	  some	  of	  our	  volunteers.	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  

Page 64



Plan	  for	  Years	  2	  and	  3	  
	  

The	  board’s	  main	  challenge	  will	  be	  to	  grow	  our	  enterprise	  in	  these	  uncertain	  and	  difficult	  economic	  
times.	  	  We	  need	  to	  generate	  work	  for	  the	  staff	  we	  have	  trained	  and	  to	  give	  our	  new	  volunteers	  
experience	  and	  development	  opportunities.	  We	  need	  to	  find	  ways	  to	  overcome	  barriers	  to	  
participation	  for	  the	  most	  marginalised	  groups.	  To	  this	  end,	  we	  have	  been	  actively	  looking	  for	  new	  
sites	  to	  use	  in	  various	  locations	  so	  that	  travel	  is	  not	  an	  insurmountable	  issue.	  The	  majority	  of	  the	  
people	  we	  work	  with	  need	  more	  than	  a	  short	  intervention.	  Our	  aim	  is	  to	  create	  a	  community	  for	  
support	  and	  self-‐care	  that	  will	  become	  a	  model	  of	  good	  practice.	  	  
	  

There	  is	  demand	  for	  our	  services	  across	  the	  age	  ranges	  and	  having	  built	  capacity	  over	  the	  last	  few	  
months,	  we	  have	  staff	  ready	  and	  willing	  to	  work.	  As	  we	  take	  on	  more	  projects,	  through	  broadening	  
our	  service	  user	  base,	  we	  will	  need	  to	  increase	  our	  pool	  of	  volunteers/staff.	  We	  will	  extend	  our	  in-‐
house	  training	  programme	  to	  include	  certificated	  training	  in	  Forest	  School	  Leadership	  Level	  1	  this	  
year	  and	  in	  the	  following	  two	  years,	  look	  to	  deliver	  Level	  2	  training	  in-‐house.	  This	  will	  enable	  some	  of	  
our	  volunteers	  to	  qualify	  and	  work	  as	  assistant	  leaders	  and	  will	  contribute	  to	  a	  virtuous	  circle	  of	  
growth	  and	  development.	  
	  

Our	  medium-‐	  to	  long-‐term	  plan	  is	  to	  establish	  a	  permanent	  base	  in	  a	  woodland.	  This	  would	  enable	  us	  
to	  have	  a	  workshop	  for	  green	  woodworking,	  storage	  and	  shelter.	  It	  would	  also	  function	  as	  a	  training	  
venue	  and	  community	  hub,	  where	  intergenerational	  work	  around	  food	  growing	  and	  cooking	  could	  
take	  place.	  We	  have	  several	  options	  of	  sites	  and	  a	  local	  trust	  who	  are	  considering	  how	  they	  can	  
support	  us	  to	  develop	  this	  in	  the	  long	  term.	  However,	  we	  need	  to	  evidence	  the	  benefit	  that	  would	  
bring.	  	  
	  

Our	  volunteers	  and	  employability	  group	  shall	  be	  carrying	  out	  woodland	  management	  tasks	  at	  various	  
sites	  across	  the	  Borders	  in	  order	  to	  develop	  their	  skills	  and	  to	  evidence	  the	  need	  for	  a	  permanent	  
base.	  We	  plan	  to	  merge	  our	  Employability	  and	  Volunteer	  Development	  Programmes	  so	  that	  we	  can	  
operate	  more	  effectively	  in	  terms	  of	  costs	  and	  time	  but	  more	  importantly	  to	  create	  a	  community	  
consisting	  of	  diverse	  but	  equally	  valuable	  members.	  	  
	  

The	  potential	  benefits	  of	  this	  project	  are	  huge.	  A	  community	  woodland	  can	  provide	  food	  and	  fuel	  but	  
more	  than	  that,	  the	  sense	  of	  connection	  and	  belonging	  that	  it	  fosters	  will	  engender	  massive	  positive	  
and	  lasting	  change	  to	  those	  involved.	  	  
	  

We	  will	  continue	  to	  provide	  intervention	  programmes	  for	  schools	  and	  will	  develop	  a	  transition	  
project	  for	  P7	  and	  S1	  children	  and	  their	  families.	  
	  

We	  will	  run	  specific	  programmes	  for	  young	  people	  with	  mental	  health	  issues	  as	  we	  have	  directly	  
observed	  the	  need	  for	  this	  in	  our	  work	  with	  schools	  to	  date.	  
	  

Much	  of	  this	  work	  will	  need	  to	  be	  funded	  by	  grant	  making	  bodies,	  in	  the	  initial	  stages	  at	  least.	  Having	  
successfully	  run	  grant-‐funded	  programmes	  in	  schools,	  we	  are	  now	  generating	  sales	  directly	  from	  
schools	  and	  we	  hope	  to	  replicate	  this	  model	  with	  our	  new	  programmes.	  For	  example,	  after	  we	  run	  
our	  Wild	  About	  Well-‐being	  Programme,	  we	  would	  hope	  that	  NHS	  Borders	  Joint	  Health	  Improvement	  
Team	  would	  pay	  for	  future	  projects.	  
	  

Other	  potential	  revenue	  streams	  include:	  development	  of	  school	  grounds,	  wildlife	  areas	  and	  
community	  allotments;	  provision	  of	  Outdoor	  Learning	  as	  well	  as	  CPD	  training	  for	  teachers;	  extension	  
of	  our	  one-‐off	  events	  programme;	  diversification	  into	  complementary	  area	  such	  as	  Music	  in	  the	  
Outdoors.	  	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	   Page 65



Market	  &	  competitors	  
	  

Our	  market	  includes:	  
	  

• Parents	  of	  children,	  who	  will	  attend	  activity	  clubs,	  holiday	  clubs	  and	  residentials.	  Parents	  are	  
becoming	  increasingly	  aware	  of	  the	  detrimental	  effect	  that	  the	  “cotton	  wool”	  society	  and	  
increased	  screen	  time	  is	  having	  on	  their	  kids.	  We	  offer	  something	  much	  more	  than	  child-‐care	  
but	  at	  a	  comparable	  price	  with	  child-‐care	  providers	  and	  activity	  clubs.	  

• Businesses	  in	  Edinburgh	  and	  Scottish	  Borders	  for	  team	  building/staff	  away	  days.	  	  
• Nurseries,	  schools	  and	  youth	  groups	  -‐	  There	  is	  growing	  demand	  for	  schools	  and	  youth	  

organisations	  to	  meet	  the	  Curriculum	  for	  Excellence	  Outdoor	  Learning	  requirements	  and	  
there	  is	  a	  need	  both	  for	  delivery	  of	  sessions	  and	  for	  training	  to	  develop	  capacity	  within	  
organisations.	  	  

• Hen	  and	  stag	  parties.	  
• Public	  bodies	  such	  as	  Scottish	  Borders	  Council,	  Edinburgh	  District	  Council	  and	  NHS	  Borders	  

e.g.	  Health	  &	  well-‐being	  projects,	  family	  relationship	  building	  and	  readiness	  for	  school	  or	  
transitions.	  

	  

Our	  competitors	  include:	  
	  

• Borders	  Forest	  Trust	  and	  Branching	  Out	  (Forest	  School	  Programmes)	  
• Mike’s	  Military	  Mayhem	  (birthday	  parties)	  	  
• Bowhill	  Rangers	  Service	  (Activity	  clubs)	  	  
• Instinctively	  Wild	  Services	  Ltd	  CIC	  (they	  work	  mainly	  with	  dementia	  patients	  and	  operate	  on	  a	  

very	  part-‐time	  basis)	  	  	  
• Freelance	  Forest	  School	  Practitioners.	  	  
• Other	  providers	  of	  intervention	  programmes,	  such	  as	  Stable	  Life,	  who	  have	  similar	  aims	  but	  

different	  ways	  of	  achieving	  them.	  	  
	  

Our	  set-‐up	  as	  a	  Community	  Interest	  Company	  means	  that	  we	  are	  not	  exclusively	  relying	  on	  grant	  
funding	  but	  are	  willing	  and	  able	  to	  generate	  our	  own	  income	  streams.	  We	  keep	  overheads	  to	  a	  
minimum	  and	  offer	  excellent	  value	  in	  terms	  of	  outcomes.	  We	  are	  a	  strong	  team	  of	  committed	  staff	  
and	  volunteers	  with	  a	  client	  focussed	  approach.	  Each	  of	  the	  directors	  bring	  diverse	  talents	  which	  
enhance	  the	  service	  we	  provide;	  including	  a	  deep	  knowledge	  &	  love	  of	  nature	  and	  wildlife,	  
backgrounds	  in	  teaching,	  youth	  and	  community	  work,	  green	  woodworking	  skills,	  environmental	  work	  
and	  musical	  and	  artistic	  creativity.	  We	  constantly	  reflect	  on	  our	  practice	  and	  undertake	  regular	  CPD	  
so	  that	  we	  can	  do	  our	  best	  to	  ensure	  good	  staff	  and	  volunteer	  retention.	  Woodland	  environments	  
foster	  well-‐being	  and	  can	  be	  accessed	  freely,	  easily	  and	  independently	  by	  clients,	  even	  after	  their	  
programme	  has	  ended.	  
	  

As	  a	  large	  team	  with	  diverse	  skills,	  we	  are	  able	  to	  deliver	  a	  range	  of	  services,	  as	  detailed	  above,	  which	  
are	  beyond	  the	  capacity	  of	  the	  majority	  of	  our	  competitors.	  The	  range	  and	  diversity	  of	  our	  knowledge	  
and	  experience	  enables	  us	  to	  be	  flexible	  and	  responsive	  to	  the	  needs	  of	  clients	  and	  potential	  clients.	  
We	  also	  have	  a	  network	  of	  skilled	  practitioners	  available	  to	  come	  in	  as	  sessional	  workers	  if	  and	  when	  
they	  are	  required.	  
	  
Marketing	  &	  Sales	  strategy	  
	  

We	  target	  clients	  for	  Wild	  Woodlanders	  through	  social	  media,	  leafleting	  via	  schools,	  posters	  &	  our	  
website.	  Our	  past	  experience	  has	  shown	  that	  word	  of	  mouth	  has	  generated	  extremely	  good	  growth	  
in	  uptake	  of	  this	  service	  
	  

Clients	  for	  team	  building/staff	  away	  days/one-‐off	  events	  will	  be	  targeted	  through	  our	  existing	  
networks,	  direct	  sales	  –	  phone	  &	  email,	  and	  through	  our	  website.	  Local	  businesses	  will	  not	  only	  have	  
an	  enjoyable	  &	  constructive	  staff	  day	  out,	  but	  will	  also	  fulfil	  their	  corporate	  social	  responsibility	  in	  
working	  with	  us.	  	  
	  

Page 66



Schools	  and	  youth	  groups	  will	  be	  made	  aware	  of	  our	  services	  by	  post	  and	  via	  email	  and	  through	  
Youth	  Borders	  ebulletin.	  Schools	  across	  Scotland	  have	  just	  received	  money	  from	  the	  Pupil	  Equity	  
Fund	  and	  we	  will	  be	  promoting	  our	  intervention	  programmes	  as	  a	  way	  of	  spending	  some	  of	  that	  
money.	  
	  

Public	  bodies	  such	  as	  Scottish	  Borders	  Council	  and	  NHS	  Borders	  will	  be	  targeted	  using	  existing	  
contacts,	  such	  as	  the	  Community	  Benefits	  Coordinator	  at	  Scottish	  Borders	  Council	  and	  via	  Public	  
Contracts	  Scotland	  portal.	  We	  also	  attend	  Community	  Learning	  and	  Development	  partnership	  
meetings	  in	  order	  to	  keep	  abreast	  of	  local	  priorities	  for	  addressing	  social	  inequality,	  which	  are	  great	  
opportunities	  to	  network.	  
	  

Our	  pricing	  is	  pitched	  competitively	  and,	  in	  terms	  of	  social	  impact,	  we	  believe	  that	  we	  offer	  extremely	  
good	  value	  for	  money.	  
	  
	  
Team’s	  skills	  
	  
Jan	  Barr	  –	  Qualified	  Forest	  School	  Leader	  (level	  3),	  Outdoor	  First	  Aider,	  Challenging	  Behaviour	  
Management,	  former	  primary	  school	  teacher,	  experience	  in	  youth	  &	  community	  work.	  Experience	  in	  
making	  successful	  funding	  applications.	  
	  
Jan	  is	  the	  acting	  Chair	  of	  the	  Board	  of	  Directors	  and	  Project	  Coordinator	  of	  nature	  Unlimited.	  Her	  role	  
includes	  budget	  management,	  purchasing,	  staff	  organisation,	  client	  communications	  etc.	  Her	  
background	  in	  community	  work	  helped	  her	  to	  design	  the	  leadership/peer	  mentoring	  programme	  
which	  the	  team	  runs	  for	  their	  16+	  group	  and	  her	  former	  job	  as	  a	  primary	  school	  teacher	  enables	  her	  
to	  make	  curriculum	  links	  in	  the	  children’s	  learning	  as	  required	  by	  schools.	  Jan	  undertakes	  regular	  CPD	  
such	  as	  Dealing	  with	  Challenging	  Behaviour,	  Support	  &	  Supervision	  training,	  supporting	  workers	  with	  
mental	  health	  issues	  and	  more.	  She	  is	  a	  member	  of	  the	  local	  Outdoor	  Woodland	  Learning	  Scotland	  
group	  who	  are	  currently	  developing	  a	  strategy	  for	  outdoor	  learning	  across	  Scottish	  Borders	  and	  is	  
always	  looking	  for	  opportunities	  to	  network.	  
	  
Geraldine	  Keita	  –	  qualified	  Forest	  School	  Leader,	  Outdoor	  First	  Aider,	  African	  drumming	  teacher.	  
	  
Geraldine	  is	  a	  project	  leader	  and,	  in	  her	  role	  as	  director,	  does	  the	  day	  to	  day	  accounting	  for	  Nature	  
Unlimited.	  She	  organises	  our	  Wild	  Woodlander	  sessions	  and	  is	  also	  Events	  Co-‐ordinator.	  As	  a	  mother	  
of	  3	  young	  boys,	  Geraldine	  is	  invaluable	  at	  maintaining	  a	  balanced	  approach	  to	  the	  dynamic	  of	  our	  
various	  groups,	  which	  promotes	  the	  successful	  outcomes	  that	  we	  have	  achieved.	  She	  has	  also	  
attended	  a	  3	  day	  accredited	  course	  on	  Dealing	  with	  Challenging	  Behaviour	  in	  the	  Outdoors.	  Her	  
drumming	  skills	  give	  us	  a	  unique	  way	  of	  building	  skills,	  confidence	  and	  teamwork	  skills	  in	  the	  young	  
people	  we	  work	  with	  and	  she	  is	  keen	  to	  develop	  this	  further,	  taking	  workshops	  into	  schools	  and	  
creating	  musical	  instruments	  using	  natural	  materials	  as	  installations	  in	  various	  woodlands	  and	  also	  in	  
school	  grounds.	  	  
	  
Ruth	  Noble	  –	  Qualified	  in	  Environmental	  Education	  and	  Sustainability,	  Forest	  School	  Leadership,	  Map	  
Reading	  and	  Outdoor	  First	  Aid	  
	  
Ruth	  is	  our	  volunteer	  co-‐ordinator	  and	  is	  also	  a	  project	  leader.	  In	  her	  role	  as	  director	  she	  is	  minute	  
secretary	  and	  undertakes	  some	  of	  the	  funding	  applications.	  Having	  led	  a	  sedentary	  lifestyle	  in	  
linguistic	  publishing	  as	  her	  family	  grew	  up,	  Ruth	  now	  relishes	  the	  chance	  to	  get	  outside	  and	  engage	  in	  
hands-‐on	  practical	  activities.	  Her	  Masters	  in	  Environmental	  Education	  (completed	  last	  year)	  gave	  her	  
a	  wide	  experience	  of	  different	  teaching	  and	  learning	  styles,	  as	  well	  as	  tasters	  in	  subjects	  such	  as	  
geology,	  ecology	  and	  navigation	  skills.	  
	  
Wendy	  Patterson	  –	  Qualified	  Forest	  School	  Leader,	  Outdoor	  First	  Aider,	  	  
	  

Page 67



Wendy	  has	  featured	  on	  the	  television	  programme,	  Border	  Life	  and	  is	  often	  recognised	  in	  the	  local	  
papers	  for	  her	  contribution	  to	  getting	  children	  outdoors	  and	  appreciating	  nature.	  She	  runs	  
Newcastleton	  Wildlife	  Watch	  Club,	  which	  won	  runner-‐up	  for	  best	  new	  Wildlife	  Watch	  Club	  award	  in	  
2013	  and	  runner-‐up	  for	  best	  club	  in	  the	  UK	  in	  2014,	  (the	  only	  club	  awarded	  in	  Scotland).	  
	  
Richard	  Barrie	  –	  qualified	  as	  a	  Forest	  School	  Assistant,	  Outdoor	  First	  Aider,	  volunteer	  assistant	  on	  
projects.	  
	  
Richard	  has	  had	  to	  overcome	  his	  own	  challenges	  as	  he	  progressed	  through	  school,	  similar	  to	  those	  
faced	  by	  many	  of	  the	  children	  &	  young	  people	  with	  whom	  we	  work.	  He	  has	  an	  encyclopaedic	  
knowledge	  of	  mini-‐beasts	  and	  ecosystems	  and	  is	  the	  go-‐to	  person	  when	  we	  are	  on	  bug	  hunts	  or	  
carrying	  out	  environmental	  surveys.	  
	  
Catriona	  Hamilton	  -‐	  qualified	  as	  a	  Forest	  School	  Assistant,	  Outdoor	  First	  Aider,	  volunteer	  and	  
sometimes	  paid	  assistant	  on	  projects.	  
	  
Carleton	  Blackwell	  -‐	  qualified	  as	  a	  Forest	  School	  Assistant,	  Outdoor	  First	  Aider,	  Bushcraft	  Leader,	  
volunteer	  and	  sometimes	  paid	  assistant	  on	  projects.	  
	  
Eoin	  Cox	  –	  director,	  green	  woodworker	  and	  teacher,	  furniture	  maker.	  
	  
Sue	  Bennet	  –	  director	  and	  bookkeeper	  
	  
Over	  the	  past	  year	  we	  have	  recruited	  more	  than	  twenty	  volunteers,	  some	  of	  whom	  were	  initially	  
clients	  on	  our	  Employability	  Programme	  and	  some	  of	  whom	  will	  go	  on	  to	  do	  training	  in	  Forest	  School	  
Leadership	  or	  Bushcraft	  Skills,	  as	  and	  when	  funding	  allows.	  
	  
	  
Operations	  
	  
We	  run	  our	  groups	  in	  local	  public	  and	  private	  woodlands,	  mainly	  focussing	  in	  the	  central	  Borders	  –	  
Galashiels,	  Selkirk	  &	  Hawick	  but	  also	  cover	  Kelso,	  Peebles	  other	  areas,	  including	  Edinburgh	  and	  the	  
Lothians	  as	  required.	  We	  do	  not	  need	  an	  office	  and	  use	  our	  own	  cars,	  therefore	  keeping	  overheads	  
low.	  The	  equipment	  we	  use	  is	  stored	  between	  us	  in	  our	  house	  or	  sheds	  and	  therefore	  we	  have	  no	  
requirement	  to	  pay	  for	  storage	  for	  now.	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	   Page 68



	  
	  
	  

	  
Nature Unlimited is a Community Interest Company Registered in Scotland No. 515581 

Page 69



This page is intentionally left blank



Nature Unlimited

30/9/17 Year End
2018 2019

Month *update the months below to ensure forecast starts from the point of year you are forecasting from

Period Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March April May June July Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March Apr May

INCOME

Sales 250 2475 400 4275 1800 2010 3220 1900 4280 3880 1800 2000 1800 2300 4800 3300 5500 2000 2500 4000 5200 3900 2300 1900 2000 2500 4000

Grants 998 2000 9425

Other Income

TOTAL 0 0 250 0 2475 1398 6275 11225 2010 3220 1900 4280 3880 1800 2000 1800 2300 4800 3300 5500 2000 2500 4000 5200 3900 2300 1900 2000 2500 4000 0 0

 

EXPENDITURE

Gross Salaries

Contract/Casual Staff Payments 3957 5065 1647 1200 3300 2400 2247 3790 3900 4450 1820 2970 2910 1590 1800 1740 1470 2880 2070 3390 1200 1590 2530 3300 2390 1490 1280 1290 1590 2580

Rent 30 30 30 30 30 30 30 30 30 30 30 30 35 35 35 35 35 35 35 35 35 35 35 35 35 40 40 40 40 40

Rates

General Expenses 17 25 19 30 15 20 25 30 35 40

Utilities (Electricity/Gas/Water)

Repairs & Maintenance

Consumables/Materials 90 53 112 0 130 80 160 400 330 560 30 120 100 30 30 30 90 180 130 220 80 100 150 250 150 90 150 80 100 210

Telephone & internet 40 40 40 40 40 40 40 40 40 40 40 40 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 55 55 55 55 55

Travelling & Volunteer Expenses 83 20 40 50 40 400 400 390 30 50 50 30 30 20 60 90 120 200 80 80 120 220 120 80 100 80 80 160

Advertising & Marketing 162 120 150 200

Professional Fees 75 500 265 130 50 250

Training 120 100 550 240 90 1200 960 1100

Postage & Stationery 30 50 50 60 50 50

Vehicle Insurance

Business Insurance 538 575 575

Capital Expenditure -          Property

Fixtures & Fittings

Equipment 441 81 114 100 1068 250 400 200 150 180

Vehicles

Other

TOTAL 5209 5464 2622 1555 3870 2625 2567 5728 4719 5590 2500 3290 3970 2025 2050 3475 1855 3565 3365 5195 1470 1855 3085 3885 3520 1755 1660 1775 1865 3085 0 0

Movement -5209 -5464 -2372 -1555 -1395 -1227 3708 5497 -2709 -2370 -600 990 -90 -225 -50 -1675 445 1235 -65 305 530 645 915 1315 380 545 240 225 635 915 0 0

Opening Bank Balance 21245 16036 10572 8200 6645 5250 4023 7731 13228 10519 8149 7549 8539 8449 8224 8174 6499 6944 8179 8114 8419 8949 9594 10509 11824 12204 12749 12989 13214 13849 14764 14764

Closing Bank Balance 16036 10572 8200 6645 5250 4023 7731 13228 10519 8149 7549 8539 8449 8224 8174 6499 6944 8179 8114 8419 8949 9594 10509 11824 12204 12749 12989 13214 13849 14764 14764 14764

Key Assumptions

The numbers in bold are confirmed income (October to April) Expenditure is accurately estimated

The numbers from May to October are conservative estimates for income, expenditure is worked out proportionately

February Sales Costs

Wild Woodlanders 200 110

FSL1 training 1000 550

Kingsland Primary School 1275 960

2475

March Sales

Wild Woodlanders 400

April Sales

Kingsland 1275 960

Wild Woodlanders 500 300

Edenside 2500 1600

4275

May Awards for All grant 9718

May Sales

Wild Woodlanders 500 250 50

Bushcraft Club 500 250 50

Birthday Parties 400 200

Training 400 150

1800 850 100

June Sales

Wild Woodlanders 360 150

Bushcraft Club 300 150 30

Birthday Parties 200 100

Training 400 200

Schools 750 450

2010 1050 30

July

Wild Woodlanders 720 450 50

Penumbra 1500 1050 120

Bushcraft Club 600 400 50

Family Events 400 180 40

3220 2080 260

August 

School 1500 1050 60

Birthday Parties 400 200

1900 0 1250 60

Sept

NHS 3000 2100 120

Wild Woodlanders 480 400

Bushcraft club 400 320

Training 400 150

4280 0 2970 120

P
age 71



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Page 73

Agenda Item 5d



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93

Agenda Item 5e



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Hawick Common Good Sub Committee 21 February 2017 1

Monitoring Report for 9 Months to 31 December 2016

Report by the Chief Financial Officer

Hawick Common Good Sub Committee

21 February 2017

1 PURPOSE AND SUMMARY

1.1 This report provides the details of the income and expenditure for 
the Hawick Common Good Fund for the nine months to 31 December 
2016 and full year projected out-turn for 2016/17 and projected 
balance sheet values as at 31 March 2017.

1.2 Appendix 1 provides the projected income and expenditure position.  This 
shows a projected surplus of £13,326 for the year.

1.3 Appendix 2 provides a projected balance sheet value as at 31 March 2017.  
It shows a projected decrease in the reserves of £26,267.  

1.4 Appendix 3 provides a breakdown of the property portfolio showing 
projected rental income for 2016/17 and actual property expenditure to 31 
December 2016.

1.5 Appendix 4 shows the value of the Newton Fund to 31 December 2016.

2 RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 It is recommended that the Common Good Sub Committee:

(a) Agrees the projected income and expenditure for 2016/17 in 
Appendix 1 as the revised budget for 2016/17;

(b) Notes the projected balance sheet value as at 31 March 2017 
in Appendix 2;

(c) Notes the summary of the property portfolio in Appendix 3; 
and

(d) Notes the current position of the investment in the Newton 
Fund in Appendix 4.

Page 99

Agenda Item 6



Hawick Common Good Sub Committee 21 February 2017 2

3 BACKGROUND

3.1 This report provides the Committee with financial information for the period 
to 31 December 2016 and projections to 31 March 2017.  The report also 
contains a projected balance sheet for the Common Good Fund as at 31 
March 2017.

4 FINANCIAL POSITION 2016/17

4.1 Appendix 1 provides detail on income and expenditure for the 2016/17 
financial year.  The projected net position for the year is a surplus of 
£13,326.  

4.2 Income & Expenditure – Rental Income
Rental income for 2016/17 is shown in Appendices 1 & 3 with Appendix 3 
detailing the projected annual rental income by individual property.  Current 
actual rental income is greater than the budgeted projection due to the 
receipt of income relating to the 2017/18 financial year.  A “pre-payment” 
journal will be processed at our financial year end to reflect income in the 
relevant year.   

4.3 Income & Expenditure – Non-Property Related Income
The projected out-turn includes an estimate for the interest receivable on 
cash deposited with the Council.  This, however, does not show as an actual 
income until the end of the financial year as the amount is dependent on 
interest rates and the average cash revenue balance invested with the 
Council over the full financial year.  The annual rate of interest applied to the 
cash deposits is expected to be around 0.25%.  An amount of £296 has also 
been projected for income received from Pay & Display.

4.4 The capital reserve is invested in the Newton Fund and distributions are 
made twice a year in September and February.  The first of two annual 
Dividends (£5,648) was received in October 2016.  The proposed budget for 
2016/17 is based on a distribution of 2.0% which will be subject to the 
overall performance of the fund throughout the year.

4.5 Income & Expenditure – Property Expenditure
(a) The property expenditure to 31 December 2016 is detailed in Appendix 

3 by property.  Main expenditure items for the year so far include 
£13,720 relating to Common Haugh Car Park repairs, £11,677 relating 
to Pilmuir Farm and £9,047 expenditure at Hawick Moor and 
Racecourse Buildings.

(b) The original approved Budget for 2016/17 included general repair 
figures of £5,000 for St Leonard’s, £10,000 for Pilmuir and £48,500 for 
the other Hawick properties.  The Pilmuir budget was increased to 
£17,500 as approved at the 15 November 2016 meeting of Hawick 
Common Good Sub-Committee.  This was to cover overspends of 
various works on the farm including £7,402 for fencing work.

4.6 Income & Expenditure – Grants & Other Donations
The grants and other donations distributed to 31 December 2016 are shown 
below.  The Hawick Common Good Sub-Committee agreed at a meeting on 
15 November 2016 to increase the Budget by £5,000 from £23,500 to 
£28,500.

Page 100



Hawick Common Good Sub Committee 21 February 2017 3

Grant Recipients Approved £

1,300
5,000
9,200
2,000
2,000
2,500

500
2,000
1,100

25,600

200

Approved and Paid to 31 December 2016
Hawick Welcome Initiative – 20th Ann Celebrations
Escape Youth Café
Hawick Golf Club Notional Rent Contribution
Hawick Summer Festival 
Hawick Honorary Provosts Council – Running Costs
Hawick Reivers’ Association – Running Costs
Hawick Royal Albert Football Club – Transport
Heart of Hawick Children’s Book Award
Wilton Bowling Club – Junior Bowls
Total Paid to 31 December 2016

Approved but not yet paid
Salvation Army Hire of Hall – 2016/17 Xmas Service
Total Grants Approved

2016/17 Budget 

Unallocated/(Overallocated)  Budget

17/05/16
17/05/16
17/05/16
29/06/16
15/11/16
15/11/16
15/11/16
15/11/16
15/11/16

18/11/14
25,800

28,500

2,700

4.7 Income & Expenditure – Depreciation Charge
The depreciation charge is projected to be £39,592.   This is not a cash 
transaction and is off-set by a corresponding contribution from the 
Revaluation Reserve at the end of the financial year.  

4.8 Appendix 2 provides the balance sheet value as at 31 March 2016, the 
projected movement in year and a projected balance as at 31 March 2017.

4.9 Balance Sheet – Fixed Assets
All fixed assets of the Common Good Fund are revalued every 5 years as 
part of the Council’s rolling programme.  The fixed assets were revalued at 
1 April 2014.  Appendix 3 shows the values of the individual properties at 
31 March 2016, projected depreciation charges for 2016/17 and projected 
value at 31 March 2017.

4.10 Balance Sheet – Newton Investment
(a) Global economic and market uncertainties during the end of 2016 has 

provided a variety of surprising results.  First official reports on the 
state of the UK economy since the June EU Referendum contradicted 
government warnings that an immediate recession would follow a vote 
to leave.  In the US, initial fears of economic and market downturns 
after the Presidential election were overcome as share prices generally 
held the momentum established earlier in the year.

(b) Over the quarter to 31 December 2016, the Newton Real Return fund 
is estimated to deliver a negative return of 4.8% against its 
benchmark of +1.1%.  This has been the result of the make-up of the 
cautiously positioned portfolio:-

 For quarter to 31 December 2016, higher risk sectors such as 
financials and energy returned 18.1% and 13.1% respectively.  
These are the sectors widely reported in the press as boosting the 
markets as a whole but sectors in which, due to risk, Newton do 
not invest in. Page 101



Hawick Common Good Sub Committee 21 February 2017 4

 Safer sectors that Newton do invest in such as consumer staples 
and healthcare fell by 1.1% and 0.5% respectively in the same 
quarter.

 Other return seeking assets held by Newton are Corporate and 
Government bonds amount to c. 35% of the portfolio fell in the 
quarter by 4% and 6% respectively.

 Gold investments, which Newton hold as “defensive” assets also 
reversed some of the gains made earlier in the year.

Although the quarter 4 bad news has to an extent negated the annual 
performance of the fund, the fund is estimated to exceed its target 
return of 4.5%, returning 4.8% for the year.

(c) It is the ethos of the Real Return fund to invest in “risk offsetting 
positions” aimed at dampening volatility and preserving capital.  The 
Newton Real Return will continue with its cautious approach, avoiding 
higher risk “quick wins” in favour of safe, robust investments in order 
to preserve capital.

(d) The Newton Real Return Fund performed consistently well over the 
long term.  However it has performed poorly over the last two quarters 
of 2016 against its benchmark.  As a result of this performance, KPMG 
were commissioned by Scottish Borders Council in January of this year 
to assess the Fund’s performance against its peers offering similar 
diversified growth funds.  The findings of this assessment are shown in 
appendix 4.  Information on quarter 4 is not yet fully available, 
however, it is anticipated that the peer performance comparison will 
show a similar picture to quarter 3.  However, the assessment 
confirms that the fund has performed well in the long term (1, 3, 5, 7 
and 10 years) against its peers.  Given the nature of the fund, it is 
over the longer term that it should be measured.  

(e) Newton’s performance against benchmark and now against its direct 
competitors will be monitored.  In addition a visit to their offices in 
London has been arranged by officers to discuss the funds current 
performance and also their outlook for the future.

(f) It is the ethos of the Real Return fund to invest in “risk offsetting 
positions” aimed at dampening volatility and preserving capital.  The 
Newton Real Return will continue with its cautious approach, avoiding 
higher risk “quick wins” in favour of safe, robust investments in order 
to preserve capital.

4.11 Balance Sheet – Cash Balance
The cash held by the fund is projected to be £47,362, an in year projected 
decrease of £86,675, due mainly to further investment in the Newton Fund, 
see Appendix 4. The projected cash movement for 2016/17 is as follows:

Cash Balance £
Opening Balance at 1 April 2016
Investment in Newton Fund
Projected Surplus/(Deficit) for year from Income & 
Expenditure Statement

134,037
(100,000)

13,326
Projected Closing Balance as at 31 March 2017 47,362

Page 102



Hawick Common Good Sub Committee 21 February 2017 5

4.12 Balance Sheet – Capital Reserve
The projections for the Capital Reserves include the unrealised gain for the 
Newton Fund as at 31 March 2017 but due to the nature of the markets no 
estimate has been made for the current years’ movement.

5 IMPLICATIONS

5.1 Financial 
There are no further financial implications other than those explained above 
in Section 4.

5.2 Risk and Mitigations
There is a risk that investments in the Newton Fund may reduce in value 
due to market or investment performance.  This risk cannot be fully 
mitigated; however, it is being managed by the selection of a Fund Manager 
with a clear objective of preserving capital values while aiming to produce 
returns in line with the benchmark.

5.3 Equalities
It is anticipated that there are no adverse equality implications arising from 
the proposals contained in this report.

5.4 Acting Sustainably 
Whilst there are no economic, social or environmental effects arising from 
the proposals contained in this report, there are, through the activities 
reported upon, positive impacts upon the economy through protection of 
employment, positive impacts upon the quality of community life and 
improvements in local amenities and nurturing of local talent.  The potential 
improvement in levels of income through the use of the new investment 
fund will act to make the Common Good Fund more sustainable in the 
future.

5.5 Carbon Management
There are no effects on carbon emissions arising from the proposals 
contained in this report.

5.6 Rural Proofing
There are no effects on rural proofing arising from the proposals contained 
in this report.

5.7 Changes to Scheme of Administration or Scheme of Delegation
There are no changes required to the Scheme of Administration or Scheme 
of Delegation arising from the proposals contained in this report.

6 CONSULTATION

6.1 The Monitoring Officer, the Chief Legal Officer, the Chief Officer Audit and 
Risk, the Chief Officer HR and the Clerk to the Council have been consulted 
and their appropriate comments have been incorporated into this report.

Page 103



Hawick Common Good Sub Committee 21 February 2017 6

Approved by

David Robertson Signature ……………………………………
Chief Financial Officer

Author(s)
Kirsty Robb
John Yallop

Capital and Investments Manager Tel: 01835 825249
Senior Finance Officer – Treasury & Investments 
Tel: 01835 824000 Extn 5933

Background Papers:  
Previous Minute Reference:  Hawick Common Good Committee 1 November 2016

Note – You can get this document on tape, in Braille, large print and various 
computer formats by contacting the address below.  We can also give information on 
other language translations as well as providing additional copies.

Contact us at Corporate Finance, Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, 
Melrose, TD6 0SA. 
Tel: 01835 824000 
Fax: 01835 825166
Email: treasuryteam@scotborders.gov.uk

Page 104

mailto:treasuryteam@scotborders.gov.uk


Hawick Common Good Sub Committee 21 February 2017 7

APPENDIX 1
HAWICK COMMON GOOD FUND

PROJECTED INCOME AND EXPENDITURE 2016/17
Actuals 

at 

31/12/16

£

Full Year 
Approved 

Budget 
2016/17

£

Full Year 
Projected 
Out-turn
2016/17

£

Full Year 
Projected 

Over/
(Under) 
Spend

£

Para 
Ref

Commentary

(120,258)

0
(5,648)

0

(109,850)

(584)
(7,439)

(296)

(109,850)

(406)
(7,439)

(296)

0

178
0
0

4.2

4.3
4.4
4.3

(125,907)

35,884
13,252
3,903

(118,169)

48,500
17,500
5,000

(117,992)

48,500
17,500
5,000

178

0
0
0

4.5b
4.5b
4.5b

£8,750 Williestruther Cottage

53,039

25,600

10,841
(5,676)

71,000

28,500

10,841
(5,676)

71,000

28,500

10,841
(5,676)

0

0

0
0

4.6

5,165

0
0

5,165

39,592
(39,592)

5,165

39,592
(39,592)

0

0
0

4.7
4.7

Property Income
Rentals Receivable

Non-Property Related Income
Interest on Cash deposited with Council
Newton Fund Investment – Dividends Rec’d
Other Income
Total Income

Property Expenditure
Property Costs – General 
Property Costs – Pilmuir
Property Costs – St Leonards
Total Property Expenditure

Grants & Other Donations

Running Costs
Central Support Service Charge
SBC Grant towards Service Charge
Net Running Costs

Depreciation
Depreciation Charge
Contribution from Revaluation Reserve
Net impact of Depreciation on Rev Res 0 0 0 0
Total Net (Surplus)/Deficit for year (42,103) (13,504) (13,326) 178

P
age 105



Hawick Common Good Sub Committee 21 February 2017 8

APPENDIX 2
HAWICK COMMON GOOD FUND

PROJECTED BALANCE SHEET VALUE AS AT 31 December 2016
Opening 

Balance at 
01/04/16

£

Projected 
Movement in 

Year 
£

Projected 
Balances at 
31/03/17

£

3,635,268
3,000

18

(39,592)
0
0

3,595,676
3,000

18
3,638,287

359,171
12,795

(39,592)

100,000
0

3,598,695

459,171
12,795

371,966

4,656
134,037

100,000

0
(86,675)

471,966

4,656
47,362

138,693

(5,549)
(5,278)

(86,675)

0
0

52,018

(5,549)
(5,278)

Fixed Assets
Land & Buildings
Feu Duties
Total Fixed Assets

Capital in Newton 
Investment Fund
Investment in Newton Fund
Unrealised Gains/(Loss)
Market Value

Current Assets
Debtors
Cash deposited with SBC
Total Current Assets

Current Liabilities
Creditors
Receipts in Advance
Total Current Liabilities (10,827) 0 (10,827)
Net Assets 4,138,119 (26,267) 4,111,852
Funded by:
Reserves
Revenue Reserve
Capital Reserve
Revaluation Reserve

(127,867)
(507,801)

(3,502,452)

86,675
(100,000)

39,592

(41,191)
(607,801)

(3,462,860)
Total Reserves (4,138,119) 26,267 (4,111,852)

Page 106



Hawick Common Good Sub Committee 21 February 2017 9

APPENDIX 3
HAWICK COMMON GOOD FUND

PROPERTY PORTFOLIO PERFORMANCE FOR 2016/17
(Projected Income and Expenditure to 31 December 2016)

Actual Property Expenditure at 31/12/16Fixed Assets Net Book 
Value at 

31/03/16

£

Projected
Deprec’n 
Charge

2016/17

£

Projected
Net Book 
Value at 

31/03/17

£

Projected
Rental 
Income

2016/17

£

Repairs

£

Rates, 
Water & 
Power

£

Ins

£

Other

£

Total

£
General
Moat Park
Moat Park Playground
Hawick Golf Course
Acreknowe Reservoir (Part)
Williestruther Loch
Williestruther Cottage
Lothian Street Store
Common Haugh Car Park
Underhaugh
Hawick Moor Racecourse & Bldgs
Hawick Moor Shootings
Woodend Grazings (West)
Millpath Stables
Ca’Knowe Monument
Volunteer Park & Stand
Hawick Burgh Woodlands
Woodend Grazings (East)
Hawick Golf Club Sub Stn Site
Common Riding
Haggis Ha/Burnflat Wall
Williestruther Path
100 Stairs and Adjacent Land
Property Expenditure (General)

0
0

73,000
0

4,500
170,742
17,074
82,000

0
32,520
4,000
1,500

21,380
0

310,135
99,000
1,000

750
0
0
0
0
-

0
0
0
0
0

4,629
463

0
0

1,240
0
0

560
0

14,933
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
-

0
0

73,000
0

4,500
166,113
16,611
82,000

0
31,280
4,000
1,500

20,820
0

295,202
99,000
1,000

750
0
0
0
0
-

0
0

9,200
0

400
6,500
2,550

11,700
0

875
300
80
0
0

1,750
0

80
75
0
0
0
0
-

0
0
0
0

1,919
339

0
13,640

0
6,502

784
0

3,710
0

2,522
0
0
0
0

1,089
0
0

693

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

765

0
0
0
0
0
0

(46)
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

80
0

2,545
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

1,342

0
0
0
0

1,919
339

(46)
13,720

0
9,047

784
0

3,710
0

2,522
0
0
0
0

1,089
0
0

2,800
General Sub Total 817,601 21,825 795,776 33,510 31,198 765 (46) 3,967 35,884

P
age 107



Hawick Common Good Sub Committee 21 February 2017 10

Actual Property Expenditure at 31/12/16Fixed Assets Net Book 
Value at 

31/03/16

£

Projected
Deprec’n 
Charge

2016/17

£

Projected
Net Book 
Value at 

31/03/17

£

Actual
Rental 
Income

2016/17

£

Repairs

£

Rates, 
Water & 
Power

£

Ins

£

Other

£

Total

£
Pilmuir
Pilmuir Farm
Pilmuir Farm Cottage
Pilmuir Farm Shed & Silage Pit
Property Expenditure (General)

1,792,503
152,800

0
-

3,749
3,600

0
-

1,788,754
149,200

0
-

45,000
7,200

0
-

11,677
1,127

0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0

447

11,677
1,127

0
447

Pilmuir Sub Total 1,945,303 7,349 1,937,954 52,200 12,805 0 0 447 13,252
St Leonards
St Leonards Farmhouse Buildings
St Leonards Cottage & Park
St Leonards Hut
St Leonards Grazings (Lot 1)
St Leonards Horse Gallop
St Leonards Grazings (Lot 2)
Property Expenditure (General)

246,222
203,942

3,200
135,000
17,000

267,000
-

4,889
5,529

0
0
0
0
-

241,333
198,413

3,200
135,000
17,000

267,000
-

9,600
5,400

0
1,349

600
7,191

-

140
2,035
1,282

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0

447

140
2,035
1,282

0
0
0

447
St Leonards Sub Total 872,364 10,418 861,946 24,140 3,456 0 0 447 3,903

Total 3,635,268 39,592 3,595,676 109,850 47,459 765 (46) 4,861 53,039

P
age 108



Hawick Common Good Sub Committee 21 February 2017 11

APPENDIX 4

HAWICK COMMON GOOD FUND

INVESTMENTS EXTERNALLY MANAGED IN NEWTON REAL RETURN FUND
Cost of Investment Units £
Initial Investment - 13 December 2013
Further 2013-14  Investments 
Further 2016-17 Investments

102,901
88,292
52,815

192,394
166,777
100,000

Total Invested to 31 December 2016 244,008 459,171

Value of Investment £
31 March 2016
31 December 2016

371,966
478,878

Increase/(Decrease) from Total Cash Invested 19,707

The following chart shows the Newton Funds quarterly return performance against the 
Benchmark and against an equity performance index (MSCI AC World Index).

-8

-6

-4

-2

0

2

4

6

8

10

31
/0

3/
20

14

30
/0

6/
20

14

30
/0

9/
20

14

31
/1

2/
20

14

31
/0

3/
20

15

30
/0

6/
20

15

30
/0

9/
20

15

31
/1

2/
20

15

31
/0

3/
20

16

30
/0

6/
20

16

30
/0

9/
20

16

31
/1

2/
20

16

Re
tu

rn
 (%

)

NEWTON FUND - SUMMARY OF QUARTERLY RETURNS TO 31 December 2016

Fund Benchmark MSCI AC World Index

The graph below has been produced by KPMG and shows the fund’s performance against 
peers as mentioned in paragraph 4.10.

Page 109



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 111

Agenda Item 12



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 115

Agenda Item 13



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 123



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 145



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 149

Agenda Item 14



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minute
	5a Heads Together
	5b Hawick Congregational Community Church - Reaching Out Project
	5c Nature Unlimited
	Item No. 5 (c) Nature Unlimited accounts 2016
	Item No. 5(c) - Nature Unlimited Business Plan
	Item No. 5(c) - Nature Unlimited cash flow 2016 - 19

	5d Hawick Community Pump Track
	5e Hawick Scout Pipe Band
	6 Monitoring Report for nine months to 31 December 2016
	12 Private Minute
	13 Action Sheets
	Item No. 13 - Action Sheet Master Copy - Hawick CGF Sub-Committee - April 2014 onwards (2)
	Item No. 13 - Action Sheet Master Copy - Hawick CGF Sub-Committee - June 2017 onwards

	14 Hawick Horse Racing Association

